SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
January 23, 2015
9:09 a.m

9:09:31 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:09 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Pat Pitney, Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget
SUVVARY

PRESENTATI ON:  OVERVI EW FY16 OPERATI NG AND CAPI TAL BUDGETS
PRESENTATI ON:  FALL 2014 FORECAST

[ Note: The presentation was postponed until January
26, 2015. See January 26, 2015 mnutes for detail.]

NPRESENTATI ON: OVERVI EW FY16 OPERATI NG AND CAPI TAL BUDGETS

9:10: 50 AM

PAT PITNEY, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
(OVMB), presented "FY2016 Budget Overview' (copy on file).
She noted that considering the gubernatorial transition and
the precipitous drop in the price of oil, the state was
facing a different budget situation. She clarified that



Governor Wal ker submitted former Governor Parnell's work in
progress (WP) budget to satisfy the Decenber 15th
deadline, and the overview represented the governor's
endor sed budget which would cone through as anmendnents. She
added that putting Al aska and Al askans first was paranount,
and asserted that in the current tough budget climte OVB
was prioritizing economc stability. She referred to slide
3, "Budget Priorities,” and highlighted OVB priorities
i ncludi ng education, resource developnent (a priority to
get to additional revenues in the future), affordable
energy, and supporting Al askan famli es.

9:12:48 AM

Ms. Pitney referenced slide 4, "Budget Guidance: Limt
Spending,"” and related that OVB asked departnents to view
the budget situation as a mnulti-year issue while first
| ooking at current spendi ng. She noted that every
conm ssioner had considered how to constrain spending as
much as possible, and that OVB al so asked what departnents
could do if their budget was reduced by five to eight
percent in addition to what the WP budget had predicted

She explained that wthin this scenario, OvB asked
departnments to focus on administrative structures in order
to maximze continued service delivery. Additionally, OVB
asked the departnents to consider where they could partner,
and whet her they could privatize. The departnents
contenpl ated those scenarios and then OVB anal yzed their
responses.

Ms. Pitney went on to relate that OVB had al so asked the
departnments to forecast the outcone of a 25 percent
reduction over a four-year period. She related that OVB had
asked departnents to consider which prograns were required
by law, which were not; and to focus on the latter. She
noted that over the current and subsequent |egislative
sessions OvB had |ooked at recent stat utes, their
associated costs, and whether any of them could be
considered for savings. She sunmarized the concept of
short-term constrai ned spending conbined with structurally
nmoving to reduce spending in the future. She added that OVB
wanted to keep Al askans involved and keep the process as
open as possi bl e.

9:15: 22 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 01/23/15 8:27 A M



Ms. Pitney discussed slide 5, "FY 2016 Budget by Al Fund
Sources," and noted that the endorsed budget was $13
billion, remarkably alnost the sanme anount as the prior
year. She noted that the consistency in anpbunts was a good
sign and helped to stabilize the econony. The slide
identified the followng fund sources: Federal Funds, 28
percent ($3.7 billion); Permanent Fund, 18 percent (%$2.3
billion); Unrestricted General Fund, 25 percent ($3.3
billion - reserves); Unrestricted General Fund, 17 percent
($2.2 billion - FY 16); and Designated GCeneral Fund, 7
percent ($875 mllion). She added that the state's
dependence on the reserves was significant, and that at
$3.3 billion, they were down from the projected $3.5
billion. She noted the Unrestricted GCeneral Funds had
decr eased.

Ms. Pitney reviewed slide 6, "FY2016 Budget by Al Fund
Sources,” to denonstrate how federal funds and the
Permanent Fund are expended, and how the state attracts
federal funds. She related that funding categories for
federal funds included the Departnment of Transportation and
Public Facilities ($1.1 billion); Medicaid ($1.4 billion);
and all other Federal Funds to include the University of
Al aska (University), K-12 education, and the Departnent of
Envi ronnental Conservation. She explained that of the $2.3
billion in the Permanent Fund, $1.4 billion went out to
citizens as a dividend and alnpbst $1 billion went to
inflation proofing.

9:17: 39 AM

Senator Dunleavy queried as to whether the committee woul d
have access to the 5 and 8 percent reduction reports from
the departnents. M. Pitney replied that the committee
woul d have access to the departnents' reconmendations, and
that the reduction reports were considered internal working
docunents for deliberative purposes only. Senator Dunleavy
asked if they would see the raw data from the departnenta

recommendations. Ms. Pitney further explained the scenarios
of devel oping reconmendati ons based on budgetary targets
provided by the governor. She clarified that if
conmi ssioners were asked to consider budget cuts or grow h,

they would provide contingency figures for each. Senator
Dunl eavy contended that the subcommttee process would
shortly begin and they would soon begin considering those
details. Ms. Pitney naintained that OVB had commtted to
the comm ssioners that the docunments would be for

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 01/23/15 8:27 A M



deli berative purposes, and it wanted to protect that
agr eenent .

9:19: 33 AM

Ms. Pitney referred to slide 7, "FY 2016 Budget by Category
Al  Funds,” which illustrated the distribution by fund
source based on the entire budget. She listed the
categories as follows: Agency Nonformula, $4.3 billion

(includes Legislature & Judiciary [Al aska Court Systeni);
Capi tal Budget, $1.4 billion; Permanent Fund, $2.3 billion;
Statewi de Appropriations, $1.3  billion; QO her Formul a
(primarily health), $2.5 billion; and K-12 Fornula, $1.3
billion.

9:20: 01 AM

Ms. Pitney discussed slide 8, "FY2016 Budget by Category
Al'l Funds." The pie chart included categories that were
state funded (shown in solid colors) and categories that
were externally funded by the investnent of state funds
(shown in patterned colors). She went on to list categories
of Unrestricted General Funds as follows: alnost 40 percent
in Formula funds; alnost 40 percent in Agency Nonformula
budgets; 20 percent in Statewi de Appropriations; and 3
percent in the current year's capital budget. She noted
that the current capital budget was quite snall.

9:21: 36 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if there would be anything in the
slides that would quantify one-tinme funding reductions
versus funding that would last over a period of nultiple
budgets. She noted that the current oil price forecast for
t he subsequent two years projected approximately $50 to $60
per barrel. She commented that wth a current budget built
on the assunption of oil priced at $100 per barrel, the
commttee was |ooking for |ong-term savings. She continued
that making cuts sooner to itens extending over the budget
period would help Alaskans better to "recalibrate."” She
noted that she was trying to determ ne how nuch one-tine
fundi ng was proposed by the governor to elimnate as far as
the transfer of general fund to federal dollars. She noted
that it appeared as if Medicaid and the switch of the $450
mllion was why overall state spending appeared whole. She
noted that she could quantify the reductions within the
capi tal budget but not within the operating budget.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 01/23/15 8:27 A M



Ms. Pitney responded that there was no slide to reference
t he anount of one-tinme funding cuts. She continued that the
reductions in the agency operating budgets were expected as
base reductions rather than a one-tine reduction that would
be funded at a | ater date.

Co-Chair Kelly pointed out that the commttee would need
the reductions quantified; specifically if education was
included, as it was identified by the governor as one-tine
funding in the anount of $91 mllion.

Ms. Pitney responded that the funds were not reflected in
the budget. She explained that because the education
funding was appropriated entirely in 2015, it would be
reflected as a $52 million dollar reduction in the 2015
suppl emrental budget, and was not reflected in the nunbers
di splayed in the presentation. She added that $40 nmillion
of the aforenmentioned $91 mllion was used in 2015, and
only reduced the 2016 and 2017 one-tinme funding. She
concl uded that what was reflected were base reductions.

9:24: 47 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon clarified her request for a dollar
anount and associated percentage of the budget cuts to
agency operating budgets or otherwi se. Ms. Pitney specified
that there was a summary sheet included in the printed
materials provided to the conmttee; it quantified the
anopunts in question and she would review it at the end of
t he presentation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon noted that both Ms. Pitney and CGovernor
Wal ker (in his State of the Budget speech the previous
eveni ng) mentioned privatization. She asserted that
privatization could alternately save or cost noney, and
wondered how OVB woul d strategize and evaluate costs when
considering privatization in reference to managenent fees,
specifically those that were an expense to the Pernmanent
Fund. She added that those are huge nunbers to the people
of Al aska, and stated that she did not need the nunbers on
that day. Ms. Pitney acknow edged her request.

Senator Dunleavy followed up and asked if there was any

departnent, division, or function that the governor would
not consider for privatization. M. Pitney responded that

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 01/23/15 8:27 A M



there was nothing off the table, and furthered that the
current fiscal situation demanded that the state | ook
differently at the way it did business. She noted that they
would be looking at short and long-term savings as
criteria.

Senator Dunleavy inquired if the governor would seriously
consider a state function for privatization if it was
denonstrated that the function could be done nore cost
effectively without inpacting quality. M. Pitney responded
in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Kelly noted that the commttee should not ask
over-arching policy questions that would undoubtedly be
further discussed by the governor's cabinet. He asserted
that he did not want to put M. Pitney in a difficult
position and that the commttee primarily needed the
nunbers at that tine.

Ms. Pitney referred to slide 11, "FY2016 UG- Spend: $5.55
Billion,” which reflected a bit about the financial trend.
She drew attention to the significant difference in General
Fund spending from FY 13 to FY 16 as well as the
highlighted $3 billion paynment to the Public Enployees
Retirement System (PERS) and the Teachers Retirenent System
(TRS) in FY 15. She noted that the paynent resulted in a
| oner annual paynent into the PERS and TRS accounts, and
woul d be a positive force in stabilizing the cost of PERS
and TRS in the future. She stated that the PERS and TRS
portion of the WP budget would be a pension obligation
bond, and rather than having a $5 mllion debt service
there woul d be a $260 million paynent.

Ms. Pitney noved to slide 12, "UGF CBR/ SBR spending by
category FY2013-FY2016," and noted that the non-fornula and
formul a agency budgets were the nost stable. She pointed
out that the capital, retirement systens, tax credits, and
other statew de budgets were nore volatile; adding that
they were "fairly stable," although grow ng.

MVs. Pi t ney referred to slide 13, "All Agenci es
contributing," whi ch illustrated t he per cent age of
reductions for agency non-fornula funds. She comented that
Judi ciary had al nbst no change from the previous year. She
pointed out that the governor's budget was reduced by 30
percent, due to 2016 not being an election year, whereas
2015 was higher than normal because of the election year.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 01/23/15 8:27 A M



She referred to an 11 percent reduction nentioned by the
governor and attributed it to a reduction in his executive
office. She explained that the Departnent of Labor and
Wr kforce Developnent and the Departnent of Comerce,
Community and Econom c Devel opnent were the two areas that
had grown the quickest in the previous few years.

Ms. Pitney continued to explain slide 13, and noted
criteria that was wused included how nuch entities had
i ncreased over the past; how nuch they had been reduced in
recent years; as well as what would be a priority need for
service in the future. She pointed out reductions in the
Department of Natural Resources, Departnent of Public
Safety, and Departnment of Health and Social Services, and
highlighted a $16 nmillion reduction to the University
budget the previous year. She comented that the University
was sizing into the previous reduction while they were
taking the additional reduction in the -current budget
proposal. She went on to state that this particular budget
elimnated the fuel trigger nechanism She noted that in
the case of current oil prices it nade sense.

9:31: 20 AM

Senator Hoffrman wondered if the commttee could get a
departmental breakdown of what the reductions entailed. M.
Pitney responded that OVvB woul d be prepared to provide that
information. She noted that the departnents were given
reduction targets to consider one week previously, and
woul d be working through the reduction scenarios. She added
t hat because the departnents had conpleted 5 and 8 percent
reduction scenarios, they had already nade sonme progress.
She noted that as the reductions becane specific they would
cone across as amendnents.

Ms. Pitney went over slide 14, "FY2016 Capital Budget" and
explained that it was a high level sunmary. She rem nded
the commttee that the capital budget was stripped down in
order to neet the Decenber 15th deadli ne.

Ms. Pitney related that a few projects were added back for
a total of $150 million. She added that the total also
i ncluded appropriations for two projects: the M. Spurr
Geot hermal project (the primary offset for the energy and
weat heri zation prograns); and $22 nillion of the $25
mllion for the aerospace project. She explained that the
mai nt enance was scal ed down significantly from prior years;

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 01/23/15 8:27 A M



although the total still included sonme for Departnent of
Adm ni stration, University, Departnment of Transportation
and Public Facilities, and a small anmount for a year of
construction for the University of Alaska Fairbanks
engi neering buil di ng.

Ms. Pitney referred to the "Arctic Policy" conponent of
slide 14 and opined that arctic policy was an inportant
opportunity for Al aska. She stated that starting in 2015
the United States was serving its two-year chairnmanship of
the Arctic Council. Alaska was the only arctic state, she
continued, and the state had only two years to ensure that
its arctic agenda was at the top of the United States
agenda during the chairmanship. She nentioned that the
budget conponent added to what the Conmission on Arctic
Policy should do, and surmised that Alaska's Arctic Policy
Advi sor Craig Fleener had Iikely worked on policy
prioritization.

Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered if the presentation was
avai lable electronically. M. Pitney responded in the
affirmative.

9:34: 44 AM

Ms. Pitney presented slides 15 to 20, noting that the
slides represented three revenue scenarios wth graphs
depicting the price of oil returning to $100, $85, and $50
respectively. She pointed out that state spending for 2016
was reflected significantly higher; this included the $3.3
mllion gap she referred to in an earlier slide. She
related that under the $100 oil price scenario, the state
budget reserves would last until FY 22 and the reserves
cane down significantly each year. She noted that even
optimstically, the gas line could start in 2023, so there
could be a very small bridge if oil prices go to the
forecast. She stated that under the $85 oil price scenario
t he budget reserves would last until FY 18.

Senat or Hoffrman asked what the assumed agency reduction
scenario was under the revenue forecasts being presented.
Ms. Pitney responded that the projection was built on the
FY 16 flat budget, but the commttee would see a 25 percent
budget reduction in agency operating budgets. She noted
that with that reduction, the projected $1.9 billion
reserve for FY 18 (illustrated in slide 18) would nove to
about $2.2 billion. Senator Hoffman requested simlar

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 01/23/15 8:27 A M



reserves projections with the reductions up to 25 percent
as forecasted by the governor. M. Pitney acknow edged the
request .

9:37:59 AM
Ms. Pitney referred to slide 20, "Reserves Projection at
$50 oil," and explained that under the scenario the state's

reserves would total $2 billion at the end of FY 17, which
would not be sufficient to get the state through FY 18
wi t hout additional revenue.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if M. Pitney would clarify when
FY 18 would occur in a calendar year. M. Pitney stated
that FY 18 would begin in July of 2017. Co-Chair MacKi nnon
noted that the date was | ess than 1,000 days away.

Vi ce- Chair M cciche noted that he appreciated the
projections being presented in the slides, and the fact
that OVB would be focused on a nore realistic range of oil
prices. He added that he would Ilike to see a final
projection wth oil at the $40 range for realistic
consideration, and that it would be a very different
outlook than the <current projection based on $50. He
stressed the inportance of considering what the state would
be faced with in case of such low prices. M. Pitney opined
that it was very possible oil would be priced at $40 a
barrel and stay there. She comented that an inportant
guestion was 'what should Al aska's budget be?' She pointed
out that Alaska was the only state that managed its budget
on the price and production of oil.

Ms. Pitney referred to slide 21, "Wat's in an Al aska
budget ?" which outlined sone supported itens in the budget,
i ncl udi ng:

e 128,100 K-12 students

e 507 schools in 53 school districts

+ 33,000 University students

e 150,000 - Medicaid beneficiaries

e 23 public health clinics

e 2,360 children in foster care

e 456 Pioneer Hone residents in 6 facilities
 Gants to nore than 900 nonprofits

e 5,600 nmles of roads and hi ghways

e 805 bridges

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 01/23/15 8:27 A M



e 2,427 state buildings and facilities

e 254 state airports and 2 international airports

e 35 ferry termnals an 11 ferries

» 25 state harbors

e 12,400 offenders in custody or supervised

e 13 correctional institutions

e 43,300 retirees frompublic service

e 40,000+ full-time state, university and K-12

enpl oyees

* 640,500 Al askans receiving a PFD

e 3.3 nmllion acres in 123 state park units

e Manage ownership of 160 mllion acres of State
| and

e 132,032 Court cases annually

* Response to 2,028 spills of 285,000 gals. of oil
and hazardous naterials

Ms. Pitney pointed out that Al aska had the |argest airport
systemin the world, as well as the largest marine highway
system She remarked that the inportant question was not
what the state could afford with oil at $40 a barrel, but
rat her what was the right size for Al aska' s governnment. She
noted that OWB took two approaches to analyzing the
guestion - elucidated in slides 22 through 23.

9:42: 35 AM

MVs. Pitney cited slide 22, "Average Total State
Expendi tures," and acknow edged the slide's conplexity. She
described the points on the graph as depicting spending for
each state based on population. She pointed out that the
line represented the per-population average, and that
Al aska was above the line, indicating greater spending per
capita. She concluded that if Al aska was on the line (not
taking into account <cost/salary/heat differentials) the
trajectory would predict that the state's budget would be
$5.3 billion. She added that the current submtted budget
was $5.5 billion. She furthered that if the "big four”
states (California, Florida, Texas, and New York) were
renmoved from the equation, the state expenditure average
would predict a $4.8 billion budget for Al aska. She
summari zed that the two predictions represented boundaries
of a sort; they illustrated what other states spend for
their state governnent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 01/23/15 8:27 A M



9:44: 35 AM

Senator Dunleavy nmade note of the 150,000 Medicaid
beneficiaries on slide 21, and wondered how many nore
Al askans would receive benefits under Medicaid expansion.
Ms. Pitney responded that sone reports showed 40,000 while
other predictions showed as Ilittle as 16,000. Co-Chair
Kelly remarked that based on new information, he considered
the range of new beneficiaries to have been 16,000 or
bel ow.

Ms. Pitney referred to slide 23, "Inflation and Popul ation
Adj ust nent Approach,” which illustrated a projection graph
based on FY 98 agency operations and adjusted by inflation
and population. She noted that when Co-Chair Kelly was a
menber of the Senate in 1998, there had been 15 years of
flat budgets in the State of Alaska, resulting in what he
described as a "pent up denmand." She characterized it as a
"l ow point" and commented that it was a very |ean budget.
She presented scenarios under which the 1998 budget was
adjusted for inflation ($3.2 billion), and then for
inflation plus population growmh ($4 billion), to view what
that would yield for the current tinme as conpared to the
governor's proposed budget ($4.2 billion). She described
t he approach as another boundary that could be considered
when |looking at state spending. She reiterated that the
totals were still significantly nore than what $40 or $50 a
barrel oil would predict.

9:47: 27 AM

Senator Bishop nade a reference to the aforenentioned "pent
up demand" that was the result of several years of |ean
budgets. He referred to the deferred naintenance of 2,400
state buildings, and inquired as to whether they should be
made a part of the current budget. He opined that deferred
mai nt enance was a bad practice. Ms. Pitney noted that the
graph they were viewing was only a representation of the
operating budget and the deferred nmaintenance was not
refl ected.

9:48: 53 AM

Co-Chair Kelly asked for <clarification on the conbined
capital and operating budget totals in FY 98. M. Pitney
expl ained that the capital budget was small (a maxi num of
$100 mllion) through the 1990s and it was difficult to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 01/23/15 8:27 A M



di scern on the graph. She added that the $2.2 billion total
at the time included the capital budget.

Ms. Pitney explained slide 24, "UG Revenue Scenarios and
FY16 Spend by category” and noted that it was for
denonstrating perspective. She pointed out that agency
operations for nonformula funding would eclipse revenue
brought in at $40 a barrel. She additionally pointed out
the graph bars for FY 16 agency operations, FY 16
Unrestricted General Fund endorsed budget, as well as a bar
to denote if the state was 25 percent below the FY 15
funding level for agency operating budgets. She commented

that the capital budget was very snmall, and the tax credit
and retirenent payments were not di scretionary. She
surm sed that even at $100 a barrel oil, spending did not

quite match the 25 percent reduced rate.

Vice-Chair Mcciche pondered that it would be challenging
to get state spending on par wth smaller-popul ation
states. He referred to slide 22, and noted that Al aska was
an outlier on the graph. He alleged that it would be
illustrative for the Alaskan people to see colored data
points to illustrate which states on the graph had incone,
sales, or state taxes. He added that achieving the state's
budgetary goals would be difficult wunless it becane
aggressive and Alaskans identified what services they
demanded as opposed to what they had becone accustoned to.
Ms. Pitney stated that she could add the requested colors
on the graph.

Ms. Pitney referred back to slide 24, and reiterated that
based on current oil production priced at $100 a barrel and
considering a budget reduced by 25 percent, still left a
gap in funding. She remarked that the gap was small wth
revenues based on $100 a barrel, and the state could get to
2022 and then rely on gas revenues. She qualified that
bel ow t he $100 per barrel price, the state would need to do
some "bridging" to make up for the deficit of funds. She
added that there was a summary of the agency budgets and
budget targets as well as a capital project sunmary
attached to the presentation (copy on file).

9:54:19 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon wondered if there had been any re-
appropriations for nega-projects (such as M. Spurr and
aerospace) and invested federal funds. Ms. Pitney replied

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 01/23/15 8:27 A M



that there were no other appropriations for nega-projects,
pendi ng the eval uati on.

Co-Chair Kelly noted that one of the problenms in the
Legi sl ature was that during session the nenbers were forced
into the role of manager rather than board of directors;
this did not work well with the current budget scenario
that included serious reductions. He applauded the governor
for what he had done so far with the budget, and remarked
that nore reductions would be necessary. He continued that
he had confidence in Ms. Pitney, expressed appreciation for
the governor's budget, and stressed that it was the
adm nistration's responsibility to manage the budget. He
added that the graphs presented did not solve the fiscal
probl em and urged continued budget increases.

Senator O son wondered when the governor would be rel easing
hi s new endor sed budget.

Ms. Pitney responded that from a technical standpoint, the
budget before the nenbers was the |evel of budget they
woul d see, and that the transaction detail would cone in
shortly after the first of the current nonth.

#
9:57:42 AM
RECESSED UNTIL 9:00 A°M JANUARY 26, 2015

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 01/23/15 8:27 A M



